






 

Board of Trustees 

January 23, 2024 

MINUTES 

Page 1 of 5 

 

 

THE HARRIS CENTER for 

Mental Health and IDD 

 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

 

This is an official record of the Board of Trustees, The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD, an Agency of 

the State, established by the Harris County Commissioners Court under provisions of Chapter 534 of the Health 

and Safety Code of the State of Texas. 

 

 

PLACE OF MEETING:  Conference Room 109 

  9401 Southwest Freeway     

    Houston, Texas 77074 

 

TYPE OF MEETING:  Regular 

  

 DATE:    January 23, 2024 

TRUSTEES 

IN ATTENDANCE:    Dr. Robin Gearing, PhD-Chair 

Dr. L. Moore, Vice Chairperson 

 Mr. Jim Lykes, Vice Chairperson  

Dr. George Santos 

    Mr. Gerald Womack 

 Mrs. B. Hellums  

 

TRUSTEES ABSENT:           Dr. Max Miller, Jr, Mrs. Natali Hurtado, Sheriff Ed Gonzalez,  

 

                                                     

I.          Declaration of Quorum  

Dr. Robin Gearing, Chair, called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m. noting that a quorum of the 

Board was in attendance. 

 

II. Public Comments- 

Public Comments were made by Seth Hutchinson, Zoe Clark, Sheronica Watson, Brian 

Kelley, Alma Castillo, Keving Higgins, Cindy Zanutti regarding the desire of some Harris 

Center employees to form a union and a request for a 7% cost of living raise for all Harris 

Center employees. Mr. Hutchinson presented the Board with a Consultation Policy and the 

Union Mission Statement for review and approval.  

 

III. Approval of Minutes  

         MOTION BY:  HELLUMS SECOND: WOMACK 

       

With unanimous affirmative votes 

  BE IT RESOLVED the Minutes of the Regular Board of Trustees meeting held on Tuesday, 

 November 14, 2023 as presented under Exhibit F-1, are approved. 

 

IV. Chief Executive Officer’s Report was provided by CEO Wayne Young  

Mr. Young provided a Chief Executive Officer report to the Board.  

Page 3 of 66



 

Board of Trustees 

January 23, 2024 

MINUTES 

Page 2 of 5 

 

Break: Dr. Robin Gearing and Wayne Young requested a break at 9:23am.  

Dr. Robin Gearing reconvened the Full Board at 9:33am. 

 

V.  Committee Reports and Action were presented by the respective chairs:  

 A. Governance Committee Report and/or Action-J. Lykes, Chair 

  Mr. Lykes provided an overview of the topics discussed and the decisions made at the   

   Governance Committee meeting on January 23, 2024. 

  

      VI.       Review and Take Action 

 

A. Approve FY’24 Year-to-Date Budget Report-December 

 

MOTION: Mr. Womack moved to table this agenda item to February’s Resource 

Committee meeting to allow Ms. McKeown to obtain additional information.   

SECOND: Mr. Lykes seconded the motion. 

      

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

B. January 2024 Contract Amendments Over 250K 

 

MOTION BY:  SANTOS  SECOND: LYKES 

       

With unanimous affirmative votes 

  BE IT RESOLVED  January 2024 Contract Amendments Over 250K as presented under 

Exhibit F-3, are approved. 

 

C. January 2024 Contract Renewals Over 250K 

 

MOTION BY:  SANTOS  SECOND: WOMACK 

       

With unanimous affirmative votes 

  BE IT RESOLVED  January 2024 Contract Renewals Over 250K as presented under Exhibit 

F-4, are approved. 

 

D. January 2024 Interlocal Agreements Over 250K 

     

MOTION:  Mr. Lykes moved to approve agenda items #1, #2, #3, #4, #6, #7 

SECOND:  Mr. Womack seconded the motion 

Dr. Gearing recused himself from item #6 University of Houston Clear Lake and #7 University 

of Houston, on behalf of The Center for Mental Health Research and Innovation 

 

MOTION:  Dr. Lykes moved to approve agenda item #5, #8 

SECOND:  Mrs. Bonnie Hellums seconded the motion 

Dr. Santos recused himself from item #5 The University of Texas at Arlington, #8 University of 

Texas Health San Antonio-Department of Psychiatry and Behavioral Sciences-Centralized 

Training Infrastructure 

 

Page 4 of 66



 

Board of Trustees 

January 23, 2024 

MINUTES 

Page 3 of 5 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, with unanimous affirmative vote, agenda item D is approved.  

 

 

E. Award Recommendation-Community Psychiatric Hospital Beds RFP 

 

MOTION BY:  HELLUMS  SECOND: SANTOS 

       

With unanimous affirmative votes 

  BE IT RESOLVED Award Recommendation-Community Psychiatric Hospital Beds RFP as 

presented under Exhibit F-6, are approved. 

 

 

F. Proposed 2024 Board Calendar 

 

MOTION BY:  LYKES  SECOND: HELLUMS 

       

With unanimous affirmative votes 

  BE IT RESOLVED Proposed 2024 Board Calendar as presented under Exhibit F-7, are 

approved. 

 

 

 VII. Consent Agenda 

 

A. The Harris Center System Quality, Safety, and Experience Performance Improvement Plan 

FY 2024 

B. All Contracts 

C. Corporate Compliance Documentation and Claims Integrity Plan 

D. Financial Assessment 

E. Licensure, Certification and Registration 

F. Mailing Services 

G. Medical Peer Review Policy 

H. Pharmaceutical Representatives Policy 

I. Pharmacy and Unit Medication/Drug Inventory 

J. Plan of Care 

K. Reporting Automobile Accidents 

L. Supervision of Peer Specialists 

 

MOTION:  Mr. Womack moved to approve Consent Agenda item B-L 

SECOND:  Mrs. Bonnie Hellums seconded the motion 

BE IT RESOLVED, with unanimous affirmative vote, Consent Agenda items B-L are 

approved. Consent Agenda item A- The Harris Center System Quality, Safety, and Experience 

Performance Improvement Plan FY 2024 F-8 was tabled. 

 

VIII. Review and Comment 

 

Dr. Gearing moved to defer agenda items the Federally Qualified Health Center Look-A-Like 

(FQHC-LAL) and DFPS Service Delivery agenda items. 

 

Page 5 of 66



 

Board of Trustees 

January 23, 2024 

MINUTES 

Page 4 of 5 

  Dr. Santos seconded the motion. 

 

The Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

 

 IX. Board Chair’s Report 

  

Dr. Gearing provided the Board Chair’s report to the Board.  

 

X. Executive Session-Dr. Gearing announced the Board would convene into Executive 

Session at 10:29 am for the following purposes: 

 

• As authorized by §551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Board of Trustees reserves 

the right to adjourn into Executive Session at anytime during the course of this meeting to seek 

legal advice from its attorney about any matters listed on the agenda. 

 

• In accordance with §551.071, Consultation with Attorney regarding pending or 

contemplated litigation or a settlement offer related to a contract dispute with a HVAC 

contractor. Michelle Morris, Rogers, Morris and Grover and Kendra Thomas, General 

Counsel 

 

• In accordance with §551.071 of the Texas Government Code, consultation with attorney 

on a legal matter related to the financing of capital improvement projects and lines of credit or 

bond sales in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental body under the Texas 

Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct to the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the 

Open Meetings Act. Kendra Thomas, General Counsel, Vanessa McKeown, Chief Financial 

Officer, and Karlos Allen, Dir. of PFM 

 

• In accordance with §551.074 of the Texas Government Code, Discussion of Personnel 

Matters related to the Nomination of Individual Board members as Board Officers and 

Committee appointments. Mr. James Lykes, Chair of Governance Committee and Dr. R. 

Gearing, Chair of the Harris Center Board of Trustees 

 

• In accordance with §§551.076 and 551.089 of the Texas Government Code, Discussion 

about security incident, network security assessment and implementation of security devices.  

Mustafa Cochinwala, Chief Information Officer, Rick Hurst, Dir. of IT Infrastructure, Wes 

Farris, Dir. Of Information Security and Enterprise Architecture, and Rita Alford, Dir. of 

Privacy 

 

• In accordance with §551.071 of the Texas Government Code, to consult with attorney in 

Executive session and seek advice and guidance on legal matters. Kendra Thomas, General 

Counsel and Paul Lamp, Partner, Spalding Nichols Lamp Langlois 

 

 

 

Page 6 of 66



 

Board of Trustees 

January 23, 2024 

MINUTES 

Page 5 of 5 

IX.     Reconvene into Open Session – The Board reconvened into Open Session at 12:38 pm. 

 

MOTION: I Dr. Santos moved the Board ratify and approve the execution of a contract for security 

software as discussed in Executive Session.  For security purposes, we will not name the vendor. 

 

SECOND: Mr. Lykes second the motion 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, with majority affirmative vote, the motion is approved.  

 

MOTION: I Mr. Lykes move the Board authorize the CEO and Legal counsel to negotiate the 

settlement and resolution of the contract dispute with a HVAC Vendor within the parameters 

discussed in Executive Session. 

SECOND: Dr. Gearing second the motion 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, with majority affirmative vote, the motion is approved.  

 

MOTION: Dr. Gearing moved that the Board officers will remain the same: Chair-Dr. Gearing, 

Vice Chair-J. Lykes, Vice Chair-L. Moore and Secretary- Dr. G. Santos and the Board member 

Committee assignments to the Resource, Quality and Program Committees and Chairs will remain 

the same.  

 

SECOND:  Mr. J. Lykes seconded the motion 

     

BE IT RESOLVED, with majority affirmative vote, the motion is approved.  

 

X.  ADJOURN 

MOTION:  SANTOS  SECOND:  MOORE 
Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes. 

The meeting was adjourned at 12:38 P.M. 

 

 

 

 
      Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Veronica Franco, Board Liaison  

Shaukat Zakaria, Chair, Board of Trustees 

The HARRIS CENTER for Mental Health and IDD 

Page 7 of 66





The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Results of Financial Operations and Comparison to Original Budget
January 31, 2024

Fiscal year 2024

Page 8 of 66



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Resource Committee
Board of Trustees
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Center)

The Center's accounting records for its general fund are maintained on a modified accrual basis.

Vanessa McKeown
Chief Financial Officer

We blieve the statements, as presented, are materially accurate and are presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial 
position and results of operations of The Center.

Responsibility for the accuracy, completeness and fairness of presentation of the presented data rests with the Center, the Chief Financial 
Officer and the Accounting departments.

Under this method, revenues are recognized in the period when they become measurable and available, and expenditures are recognized 
when the related fund liability is insurred, if measurable.

The financial report submitted herewith was prepared to reflect budget basis reporting and has not been audited by an independent auditor.

The Results of Financial Operations and Comparison to Budget submitted herewith was prepared by The Center's Accounting Department.

Page 9 of 66



Page 3 

For the Month

Original budget Actual Variance

Revenues 28,619,834$     31,328,756$     2,708,921$    
Expenditures 28,536,501       30,760,498       (2,223,997)     

Change in net assets 83,333$            568,257$          484,924$       

Debt payment (83,333)$           -$                  83,333$         
Capital                      (359,114)           (359,114)        
Other sources and uses                      2,869                2,869             

0$                     212,012$          212,012$       
                  

Fiscal Year to Date

Original budget Actual Variance

Revenues 143,099,171$   141,062,012$   (2,037,159)$   
Expenditures 142,682,505     140,475,920     2,206,584      

Change in net assets, operations 416,667$          586,092$          169,425$       

Debt payment (416,667)$         -$                  416,667$       
Capital                      (1,424,442)        (1,424,442)     
Other sources and uses                      39,082              39,082           

0$                     (799,268)$         (799,268)$      

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Results of Financial Operations and Comparison to Original Budget

January 31, 2024
unaudited/budget-basis reporting

Page 10 of 66



Page 4 

Budget Actual $ % Budget Actual $ %
Operating Revenue     

State General Revenue 10,145,271$      11,392,784$      1,247,513$    12% 50,726,356$      51,111,720$     385,363$       1%
Harris County and Local 5,420,027          5,740,898          320,870         6% 27,100,137        26,201,512       (898,625)        -3% A
Federal Contracts and Grants 4,034,513          4,564,510          529,997         13% 20,172,565        18,507,190       (1,665,375)     -8% B
State Contract and Grants 1,128,277          736,954             (391,323)        -35% 5,641,387          3,548,217         (2,093,170)     -37% C
Third Party Billing 2,766,500          3,156,405          389,904         14% 13,832,502        14,963,449       1,130,947      8% D
Charity Care Pool 3,340,350          3,340,350          (0)                   0% 16,701,751        16,701,754       3                    0%
Directed Payment Programs 726,250             1,320,320          594,070         82% 3,631,250          4,455,176         823,926         23%
PAP 833,578             792,228             (41,350)          -5% 4,167,890          4,135,956         (31,933)          -1%
Interest Income 225,067             284,307             59,241           26% 1,125,333          1,437,039         311,706         28% E

Operating Revenue, total 28,619,834$      31,328,756$      2,708,921$    9% 143,099,171$    141,062,012$   (2,037,159)$   -1%
Operating expenditures     

Salaries and Fringe Benefits 19,926,501$      21,622,642$      (1,696,141)$   -9% 99,632,505$      101,176,509$   (1,544,004)$   -2% F
Contracts and Consultants 2,089,012          2,002,562          86,450           4% 10,445,060        6,739,865         3,705,195      35% G
Contracts and Consultants-HPC 2,322,735          1,840,164          482,571         21% 11,613,673        11,533,250       80,423           1%
Supplies and Drugs 1,531,755          2,419,718          (887,963)        -58% 7,658,774          10,520,117       (2,861,343)     -37% H
Purchases, Repairs and Maintenance of:
Equipment 597,697             797,371             (199,674)        -33% 2,988,486          2,387,858         600,627         20% I
Building 538,158             289,739             248,420         46% 2,690,792          820,591            1,870,201      70% J
Vehicle 86,436               129,765             (43,329)          -50% 432,181             384,571            47,609           11%
Telephone and Utilities 318,221             258,582             59,639           19% 1,591,103          1,200,006         391,097         25%
Insurance, Legal and Audit 166,175             278,378             (112,203)        -68% 830,877             800,774            30,103           4%
Travel 194,028             201,360             (7,332)            -4% 970,142             688,871            281,271         29%
Other 765,783             920,218             (154,436)        -20% 3,828,913          4,223,509         (394,595)        -10%

Operating Expenditures, total 28,536,501$      30,760,498$      (2,223,997)$   -8% 142,682,505$    140,475,920$   2,206,584$    

 Change in Net Assets, before Other Sources 83,333$             568,257$           484,924$       416,667$           586,092$          169,425$       

Other Sources

Debt payment (83,333)$           -$                  (83,333)$        (416,667)$         -$                  (416,667)$      
Capital outlay -                    (359,114)           359,114          -                    (1,424,442)        (1,424,442)     
Insurance proceeds -                    2,869                 (2,869)             -                    29,812              29,812            
Proceeds from Sale of Assets -                    -                    -                  -                    9,270                9,270              

Change in Net Assets, all Sources 0$                      212,012$           212,012$       0$                      (799,268)$         (799,268)$      

VarianceVariance

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

January 31, 2024

Fiscal Year to Date

Results of Financial Operations and Comparison to Original Budget

Non-GAAP / Budget-Basis reporting

For the Month of

Page 11 of 66



Page 5 

December-23 January-24 Change
ASSETS

Current Assets   
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Petty Cash 10,906,461$      9,057,902$        (1,848,558)       
Cash Equivalents 60,045,071        52,802,562        (7,242,509)       

Cash and Cash Equivalents, total 70,951,532$      61,860,464$      (9,091,067)$     AA

Inventory and Prepaid 10,265,374        7,551,859          (2,713,515)$     BB
Accounts Receivable:

Other 52,656,165        59,994,177        7,338,012        CC
Patient, net of allowance 5,542,036          2,672,395          (2,869,641)       

Current Assets, total 139,415,106$    132,078,895$    (7,336,211)$     

Capital Assets
Land 12,694,280$      12,694,280$      -$                 
Building and Building Improvements 46,595,256        46,595,256        -                   
Furniture, Equipment and Vehicles 9,952,470          9,952,470          -                   
Construction in Progress 24,267,898        24,267,898        -                   

Capital Assets, total 93,509,904$      93,509,904$      -$                 

Total Assets 232,925,009$    225,588,798$    (7,336,211)$     

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Unearned Income 37,370,001$      27,672,552$      (9,697,449)$     DD
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 24,259,352        26,399,281        2,139,929        EE
Long term Liabilities 780,716             790,013             9,297               

Liabilities, total 62,410,069$      54,861,846$      (7,548,223)$     

NET ASSET
Inventory and Capital Assets 93,654,093$      93,091,377$      (562,715)$        
Assigned 66,514,014        66,514,014        -                   
Unassigned 11,358,113        11,920,828        562,715           
Change in net assets (1,011,280)         (799,268)            212,012           

Net Assets, Total 170,514,939$    170,726,951$    212,012$         

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Balance Sheet

January 31, 2024
Non-GAAP / Budget-Basis reporting

Page 12 of 66



Page 6 

Results of Financial Operations and Comparison to Budget
A Harris County and Local Revenue

B Federal Contract and grants

C State Contract and Grants

D Third party billing

E Interest

Interest revenue continues to exceed budget estimates.

F Salaries/Wages and Fringe Benefits

G Contracts and consultants

H Supplies

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Notes to Statements Presented

Non-GAAP / Budget-Basis reporting
January 31, 2024

The primary driver of the net unfavorable budget variance in Harris County and Local Revenue is several County programs revenue are under budget 
as of January.

The primary driver of the net unfavorable budget variance in Federal Contract and grants is several program's revenue are under budget as of 
January.

The primary driver of the net unfavorable variance in State Contract and Grants is related to timing of expenditures for building costs for Healthy 
Community Collaborative, i.e. 6168 apartments.

Third party billing exceeds anticipated budget, in total, due to revenue generated in our pharmacies.  However, we are seeing some areas under 
budget and are reviewing the cause.

The primary drivers of the positive contracts and consultants variance are savings in contract labor costs and timing of payments as programs get 
established.

The primary driver of the net unfavorable variance in supplies is the increase in retail drug pharmacy purchases.  Please note, revenue earned 
exceeds the original budget as well.

The primary driver of the net unfavorable variance in Salaries and Benefits is due to a slight increase in benefit percent costs; our vacancy allowance 
is roughly 2% higher than actual amounts as of January.  We anticipate this to correct itself as we move through the calendar year.

Page 13 of 66



Page 7 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Notes to Statements Presented

Non-GAAP / Budget-Basis reporting
January 31, 2024

I Equipment

J Building

Balance sheet
AA Cash and Investments

BB Inventory and Prepaid  

BB Accounts receivable, other

CC Unearned income

DD Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

The primary driver of the increase in Accounts Receivable, other is the recognition of amounts owed from the County for the annual allocation and the 
Charity Care program.

Unearned income has declined due to the recognition of revenue received for the performance contract award from HHSCH.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities has increased due to timing of payroll and related liabilities.

Inventory and Prepaid balances decreased decline in DPP IGT balances.

The primary dirver of the net favorable variance in building costs is timing of building remodel costs budgeted for the Hospital to Home program.

The decline in cash and cash equivalents declines as we approach quarter end and will increase once we receive the third qtr revenue from HHSC 
(anticipated in February).

The primary driver of the favorable variance in equipment is desktop/laptop purchases are under budget by $507K.

Page 14 of 66



Page 8 

Local Government Investment Pools (LGIPs)

 Beginning Balance Transfer In Transfer Out  Interest Income Ending Value  Portfolio % 
 Monthly Interest 

Rate 
 Monthly 

Yield 

Texas CLASS  
Texas CLASS General Fund 15,148,849$                -$                       (7,500,000)$           46,545$             7,695,394$             14.6% 5.54% 5.595%

TexPool
TexPool Prime 41,381,740                  -                         -                         194,990             41,576,730             78.7% 5.55% 4.801%
TexPool General Fund 1,069,753                    -                         -                         4,857                 1,074,610               2.0% 5.35% 4.611%
TexPool Internal Service Fund 2,444,729                    -                         -                         11,099               2,455,828               4.7% 5.35% 4.611%

TexPool Sub-Total 44,896,222                 -                        -                        210,946            45,107,168             85.4% 4.786%

Total Investments 60,045,071$                -$                       (7,500,000)$           257,491$           52,802,562$           100% 4.904%
-                              -                          

Additional Interest-Checking Accounts 65,275               

Total Interest Earned 322,766$           

3 Month Weighted Average Maturity (Days) 1.00
3 Month Weighted Average Yield 5.53%
3 Month Rolling Weighted Average Daily Treasury Bill Rate (4 weeks) 5.30%
Interest Rate - Chase Hybrid Checking 3.15%
ECR - Chase 3.25%

Investment Strategy approved by the Board of Trustees.  

Approved:

Hayden Hernandez, Accounting and Treasury Manager

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

Investment Portfolio

January 31, 2024

This Investment Portfolio Report of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD As of January 31, 2024 is in compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA), Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code and the

Page 15 of 66



Page 9 The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Monthly Report of Financial Transactions Related to Payments of Liabilities for Employee Benefits

January 31, 2024

Vendor Description
Monthly Not-To-

Exceed*
Jan-24 Fiscal Year to Date Total

Lincoln Financial Group Retirement Funds (401a, 403b, 457) $3,500,000 $1,857,988 $10,237,387

Blue Cross Blue Shield of TX Health and Dental Insurance $3,200,000 $4,892,418 $12,253,798

UNUM Life Insurance $300,000 $0 $621,890

* As established by the Board Resolution: Harris Center Board of Trustees Signature Authorization and Delegation Authority for Certain Items
  effective May 23, 2023.

Notes:

Page 16 of 66





Page 17 of 66



Page 18 of 66



Page 19 of 66



Page 20 of 66



Page 21 of 66



Page 22 of 66



Page 23 of 66



Page 24 of 66



Page 25 of 66



Page 26 of 66



Page 27 of 66



Page 28 of 66



Page 29 of 66



Page 30 of 66



Page 31 of 66



Page 32 of 66



Page 33 of 66





Page 34 of 66



Page 35 of 66



Page 36 of 66



Page 37 of 66



Page 38 of 66



Page 39 of 66



Page 40 of 66



Page 41 of 66



Page 42 of 66



Page 43 of 66



Page 44 of 66



Page 45 of 66



Page 46 of 66



Page 47 of 66



Page 48 of 66



Page 49 of 66



Page 50 of 66



Page 51 of 66



Page 52 of 66



Page 53 of 66



Page 54 of 66



Page 55 of 66



Page 56 of 66



Page 57 of 66



Page 58 of 66



Page 59 of 66



Page 60 of 66



Page 61 of 66



Page 62 of 66





 
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

INTERVIEW

Wayne Young, FACHE, CEO, The Harris Center for
Mental Health and IDD

As the CEO of The Harris Center for Mental Health and
IDD, Wayne Young, FACHE, lives his passion to ensure
access to comprehensive mental health and intellectual and

developmental disabilities care for anyone in need. Mr. Young has
a deep appreciation of the challenges that acute care systems face
in providing those services. He also sees the great value of those

services—both to the people who need them and to the communities in which they
live.

Mr. Young has served as the chair of the Texas Health and Human Services
Commission Behavioral Health Advisory Council and was appointed by the Supreme
Court of Texas and Court of Criminal Appeals of Texas to the Texas Judicial Commission
on Mental Health. His innovative healthcare-centered approach to law enforcement calls
associated with mental health has been recognized by Modern Healthcare and NAMI
(National Alliance on Mental Illness).

In a recent interview with Eric W. Ford, PhD, editor of the Journal of Healthcare
Management, Mr. Young described his thoughts on leading one of the largest behavioral
health organizations in the United States and serving a population that largely relies on
safety-net care.

Their conversation is edited here for format and clarity.

Dr. Ford: What ignited your passion for behavioral health?
Mr. Young: It’s hard to find someone untouched by mental health or behavioral

health conditions. Millions of people are experiencing mental illness and substance use
disorders that too frequently result in high rates of poverty, criminal justice involvement,
disability, shortened life expectancy, and a host of other poor health outcomes. For me,
the ability to offer them hope and support—drawing from both my family’s experiences
and my own journey to long-term recovery—is a privilege. Being able to connect, share,
and make a difference in the lives of so many others is incredibly fulfilling.

Dr. Ford: Given the current mental health epidemic in the United States, what do you
see as primary challenges for healthcare providers?

Mr. Young: The basic challenges lie in our nation’s historical underinvestment
in behavioral health, which has resulted in a lack of infrastructure and underfunded
systems. I think the underinvestment is a result of multiple factors, including the stigma

� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

© 2023 Foundation of the American College of Healthcare Executives
DOI: 10.1097/JHM-D-23-00213

© 2023 Foundation of the American College of Healthcare Executives. Unauthorized reproduction of this
article is prohibited.

380 Volume 68, Number 6 • November/December 2023

D
ow

nloaded from
 http://journals.lw

w
.com

/jhm
online by B

hD
M

f5eP
H

K
av1zE

oum
1tQ

fN
4a+

kJLhE
Z

gbsIH
o4X

M
i0hC

yw
C

X
1A

W
nY

Q
p/IlQ

rH
D

3i3D
0O

dR
yi7T

vS
F

l4C
f3V

C
4/O

A
V

pD
D

a8K
2+

Y
a6H

515kE
=

 on 11/15/2023

Page 63 of 66



Interview
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

of mental illness and the fragmentation of the U.S. healthcare system that has treated
mental health separately from physical health. This separation has created funding
disparities, crisis-driven funding prioritized over longer-term support, and historically
less organized advocacy and lobbying for mental health resources. Healthcare faces
a general workforce challenge, which also complicates the need to attract and retain
qualified talent.

The silver lining is that mental health is now widely recognized and discussed more
than ever as an important issue to address. Healthcare systems have begun to realize the
impact of mental health on physical healthcare outcomes—they are seeing the need to
provide integrated, holistic care to the entire person. Health plans are considering the
disproportionate costs of care for those with co-occurring mental health conditions. And
legislators and policymakers are recognizing the need to address the growing epidemic of
mental illness.

The context of these changes is worth noting. The pandemic created a shared
experience where everyone’s mental wellness has been impacted in some way. This is
not a “they or them” situation. In fact, it seems this shared experience is resulting in less
stigma and a stronger movement to provide support.

Dr. Ford: Recently, opioid settlements between states and drug manufacturers and
their distributors have made headlines. How do you see them affecting the work of your
organization?

Mr. Young: The opioid crisis has broken barriers and broadened our understanding
of substance use disorders. I am referring specifically to the huge increases in overdose
deaths driven primarily by the misuse of opioids. The national overdose death rate
quadrupled between 2000 and 2019. In 2022, there were 109,000 overdose deaths in the
United States—more than twice the number of deaths in car accidents.

The reinvestment of opioid settlement dollars into local treatment and services,
plus the surge in awareness of the crisis following the settlements, will significantly help
communities provide better care.

Dr. Ford: Earlier, you emphasized workforce development issues. Can you share a bit
about your career trajectory and the influences that shaped it?

Mr. Young: I have been blessed with outstanding mentors throughout my journey.
Initially trained as a licensed professional counselor in Texas, I later pursued a master
of business administration degree in healthcare administration. This dual perspective
allows me to bridge the gap between clinical and administrative perspectives, facilitating
a common ground in advancing our mission to provide high-quality, efficient, and cost-
effective services so that everyone with behavioral health and developmental needs can
live with dignity as fully functioning, participating, and contributing members of our
community.

© 2023 Foundation of the American College of Healthcare Executives. Unauthorized reproduction of this
article is prohibited.

www.ache.org/journals 381

D
ow

nloaded from
 http://journals.lw

w
.com

/jhm
online by B

hD
M

f5eP
H

K
av1zE

oum
1tQ

fN
4a+

kJLhE
Z

gbsIH
o4X

M
i0hC

yw
C

X
1A

W
nY

Q
p/IlQ

rH
D

3i3D
0O

dR
yi7T

vS
F

l4C
f3V

C
4/O

A
V

pD
D

a8K
2+

Y
a6H

515kE
=

 on 11/15/2023

Page 64 of 66



Journal of Healthcare Management
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

Dr. Ford: Yes, balancing a clinical background with business needs is indeed a challenge
for many leaders. Can you enlighten us about the structure and governance of The Harris
Center?

Mr. Young: The Harris Center is based in Houston, Texas, and serves as the primary
mental health system for Harris County. We cover a population of around 4.8 million—
the state’s most populous county. Our board of trustees, appointed by the Harris County
Commissioners Court, oversees our mission to assist those with severe mental illnesses
regardless of their ability to pay for our services.

Dr. Ford: The Harris Center has made significant strides in integrating healthcare-
centered approaches with law enforcement calls related to mental health. What are you
doing that is working in your community and can work elsewhere?

Mr. Young: We have worked extensively to mitigate the overlap of mental health and
the criminal justice system. In one of our initiatives, we have provided over 300 tablets
to law enforcement officers in a dozen agencies. When the officers are dispatched by
911 to a scene that seems to have a mental health component, they can push an icon on
their tablet’s screen and hand it to the person in distress. Our crisis clinicians then do an
immediate telehealth crisis assessment.

Also, ours was the first community in the country to embed crisis mental health
clinicians in the local 911 call center. The Harris Center counselors are in place to de-
escalate mental health crises and prevent thousands of unnecessary dispatches of police,
fire, and ambulances. This program has received awards from the National Council
for Behavioral Health and the National Association of Counties because it serves as an
effective workforce multiplier, reducing criminal justice involvement and ensuring that
people get the right treatment at the time in the right setting.

We also operate a precharge diversion center. We have seen that individuals who
come through the diversion center are 1.3 times less likely to be booked into jail again
(and that number goes up to 3.1 times less likely if they have been arrested five or more
times). By connecting them to housing and employment opportunities, we set them on a
more positive trajectory—which is hugely beneficial for them and the community.

Besides the health benefits, there is a business case to be made for our goal at The
Harris Center to minimize the unnecessary involvement of people with mental illnesses
in the criminal justice system. For every dollar spent at the diversion center, we avoid
$5.54 in criminal justice costs. Taxpayers ultimately pay those costs, including jail staff,
food/medication while incarcerated, judges, public defenders, district attorney time, and
so forth.

Dr. Ford: Funding such a mission and ensuring its sustainability must be a constant
challenge. How do you manage it?

Mr. Young: It is indeed a challenge. We rely on a mix of state, federal, and local
funding, plus philanthropic support. Most of our funding to address the intersection
of mental health and criminal justice comes from state grants, but funds from various
sources must be braided together to create a safety net that can fully support the

© 2023 Foundation of the American College of Healthcare Executives. Unauthorized reproduction of this
article is prohibited.

382 Volume 68, Number 6 • November/December 2023

D
ow

nloaded from
 http://journals.lw

w
.com

/jhm
online by B

hD
M

f5eP
H

K
av1zE

oum
1tQ

fN
4a+

kJLhE
Z

gbsIH
o4X

M
i0hC

yw
C

X
1A

W
nY

Q
p/IlQ

rH
D

3i3D
0O

dR
yi7T

vS
F

l4C
f3V

C
4/O

A
V

pD
D

a8K
2+

Y
a6H

515kE
=

 on 11/15/2023

Page 65 of 66



Interview
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

individual needs of those who seek our services. We are continually seeking unique
and special funding opportunities to sustain our initiatives.

Dr. Ford: Can you share a story about how someone’s life has been transformed because
of the efforts of The Harris Center’s staff?

Mr. Young: Of course. Just today (September 1), which marks the start of Suicide
Prevention Awareness Month, I was reminded of an individual we served through our
mobile crisis teams. Within an hour after he called the national 988 Suicide & Crisis
Lifeline, our team was at his door. He later shared with county officials that he would
have taken his life if he did not have someone to reach out to—someone who could
recognize his crisis and respond quickly. Today, he is doing well.

Dr. Ford: Why is diversity, equity, and inclusion important to the work of your
organization?

Mr. Young: Harris County and Houston are among the most culturally diverse
communities in the country. Our workforce mirrors that diversity and understands
the cultural and contextual nuances that come into play in behavioral health, which
builds trust and comfort with those we serve. Behavioral health needs are very personal
in nature. Being able to share those challenges with professionals who have a shared
lived experience or a shared culture reduces stigma and a host of other communication
barriers to care. We have been recognized as an outstanding diverse organization by the
Houston Business Journal, which speaks to the success of our intentional efforts.

Dr. Ford: With a growing need for professionals in the mental health sector, how do you
work to ensure a steady talent pipeline?

Mr. Young: We partner with more than 65 academic institutions, both local and
distant. We provide training for those new to the profession and offer a clear career path
within our organization. Two of our current vice presidents started at The Harris Center
as direct care workers and have been with us for more than two decades, proving the
viability of this career path.

Dr. Ford: Personal well-being is always difficult for healthcare leaders. How do you
maintain your health, both mentally and physically?

Mr. Young: It’s all about balance. While I love what I do, I also prioritize spending
time with my family, traveling, and ensuring I get enough rest and exercise.

Dr. Ford: Are there any books you’d recommend to your peers?
Mr. Young: Healing: Our Path from Mental Illness to Mental Health is an honest

accounting of our national system’s failures by Thomas Ensel, former director of the
National Institute of Mental Health. Dr. Ensel presents a compelling view of our future
direction and infuses hope, recognizing that most people do recover from mental illness.

Quint Studer’s work is also invaluable. His emphasis on patient-centered health
and quality has influenced our organization immensely. His insights resonate with me
as someone in long-term recovery. And he owns two minor-league baseball teams, so
baseball is another shared passion!

© 2023 Foundation of the American College of Healthcare Executives. Unauthorized reproduction of this
article is prohibited.

www.ache.org/journals 383

D
ow

nloaded from
 http://journals.lw

w
.com

/jhm
online by B

hD
M

f5eP
H

K
av1zE

oum
1tQ

fN
4a+

kJLhE
Z

gbsIH
o4X

M
i0hC

yw
C

X
1A

W
nY

Q
p/IlQ

rH
D

3i3D
0O

dR
yi7T

vS
F

l4C
f3V

C
4/O

A
V

pD
D

a8K
2+

Y
a6H

515kE
=

 on 11/15/2023

Page 66 of 66


	Agenda
	I. DECLARATION OF QUORUM
	II. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	A. Approve Minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting Held on Tuesday, January 23, 2024

	IV. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT
	V. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ACTIONS
	A. Audit Committee Report and/or Action
	B. Resource Committee Report and/or Action 
	C. Quality Committee Report and/or Action
	D. Program Committee Report and/or Action
	E. Foundation Report and/or Action

	VI. CONSENT AGENDA
	A. Approve FY'24 Year-to-Date Budget Report-January
	B. February 2024 Contract Amendments Over 250K
	C. February 2024 Interlocal Agreements

	VII. REVIEW AND TAKE ACTION
	A. External Audit

	VIII. REVIEW AND COMMENT
	A. DFPS Update

	IX. BOARD CHAIR’S REPORT
	X. EXECUTIVE SESSION
	As authorized by §551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Board of Trustees reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at anytime during the course of this meeting to seek legal advice from its attorney about any matters listed on the agenda.

In accordance with §551.074 of the Texas Government Code, discussion of Personnel Matters related to the Nomination and Election of Individual Board members as members of the Audit Committee. Dr. R. Gearing, Chair of the Harris Center Board of Trustees. 

In accordance with §551.071 of the Texas Government Code, consultation with attorney on a legal matter related to the financing of capital improvement projects and lines of credit or bond sales in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct to the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Open Meetings Act. Wayne Young, CEO, Vanessa McKeown, CFO and Kendra Thomas, General Counsel.  


	XI. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION                                                       
	XII. CONSIDER AND TAKE ACTION AS A RESULT OF THE EXECUTIVE SESSION
	XIII. INFORMATION ONLY
	A. Journal of Healthcare Management Article

	XIV. ADJOURN
	



______________________________________
Veronica Franco, Board Liaison
Robin Gearing, Chair, Board of Trustees
The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD


